
 
AGENDA 

 
OnPoint Board 

Tuesday, June 21, 2022  
5:30 pm 

 
County Services Building, 3283 122nd Avenue, Allegan 

Allegan County Commission Board Room 
 

Also available virtually at the link or phone number below: 

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer or mobile app 

Click here to join the meeting 
Or call in (audio only) 

+1 616-327-2708,,896969400#   United States, Grand Rapids 
Phone Conference ID: 896 969 400# 

 
 

NOTE: At this time, in-person attendance capacity is limited. Social distancing is required.  
 
1. Call to Order – Commissioner Gale Dugan 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Provision for Public Comment – Agenda items only, subject to 5” limit per speaker  

4. Approval of Agenda 

5. Consent Agenda – All items listed are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will 
not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda upon request of any board member and will be considered separately. 

a. Motion – Approval of prior minutes: 

i. RRAC Meeting (04.19.2022) 
ii. Executive Committee Meeting (05.13.2022) 
iii. Board Meeting (05.17.2022)  
iv. Building Committee Meeting (05.17.2022) 
v. Finance Committee Meeting (05.17.2022)  
vi. Program Committee Meeting (05.17.2022)  

 
6. Building Committee – Commissioner Gale Dugan 

7. Program Committee – Commissioner Jim Storey  

8. Finance Committee Report – Beth Johnston 

a. Motion – Approval of Voucher Disbursements May 2022 

b. Motion – Approval of Contracts 

9. Recipient Rights Advisory Committee (Feb/Apr/Jun/Aug/Oct/Dec) – Glen Brookhouse 

10. Chairperson’s/Executive Committee Report – Commissioner Gale Dugan 

11. LRE updates – Jim McCormick/Stephanie VanderKooi 

12. ACCMHS Executive Director’s Report – Mark Witte 

13. Provision for Public Comment (any topic, subject to 5” limit per speaker) – Commissioner Dugan 

14. Board Member Comments 

15. Adjournment 

 



Future meetings: 

July 15, 2022 – 2:30 pm – Executive Committee 

July 19, 2022 – 3:30 pm – Building Committee 

July 19, 2022 – 4:15 pm – Finance and Program Committees 

July 19, 2022 – 5:30 pm – Full Board 

August 12, 2022 – 2:30 pm – Executive Committee 

August 16,2022 – 3:30 pm – Building and Recipient Rights Advisory Committees 

August 16,2022 – 4:15 pm – Finance and Program Committees 

August 16,2022 – 5:30 pm – Full Board 

 



OnPoint  
Building Committee 

June 21, 2022 – 3:30 pm 
Location: County Services Building (CSB) in the Nederveld Room (just off lobby) 

 
Board Members:  [  ] Gale Dugan  [  ] Mark DeYoung  [  ] Beth Johnston  [  ] John Weerstra 
Staff Members:  [  ] Nan Lawrence  [  ] Erinn Trask  [  ] Mark Witte  
 
Proposed Agenda: 
 

1. Review/Approval of Agenda 
 

2. Review/Approval of Prior Minutes  
 

3. Construction Report 
 

4. Financial Report  
 

5. Other  
 

6. Next Meeting Date 
 

7. Adjournment 
 



OnPoint 
Board Building Committee Minutes 

May 17, 2022 
 

Board Members:  [X] Gale Dugan  [X] Mark DeYoung  [X] Beth Johnston  [  ] John Weerstra 
Staff Members:  [X] Nan Lawrence  [X] Erinn Trask [X] Mark Witte 
 

1. Review/Approval of Agenda – Motion by Commissioner Mark DeYoung, supported by Beth 
Johnston, to approve the agenda as presented. All in favor. Approved. 
 

2. Review/Approval of Prior Minutes – Minutes of April 19, 2022 meeting reviewed. Motion by 
Beth Johnston, supported by Commissioner Mark DeYoung, to approve the minutes as 
presented. All in favor. Approved. 

 
3. Chairman Dugan joins the meeting at 3:40 and assumes the chair. 

 
4. Construction Report – OnPoint staff presented a verbal report of the progress made to date with 

construction, supported by minutes found in the board packet from construction Progress 
Meeting #6 (held on 4/14/2022) and Progress Meeting #7 (held on 4/28/2022). Described the 
problem and resolution of Haworth’s window walls and the ceiling deflection concern.  
 

5. Financial Report – OnPoint staff reported on financial progress and specifically Change Order #4. 
All budgets on track. Finalized discussion on adjoining property without an offer, which returns 
those funds to the original project budget.  
 

6. Next Meeting Date – Tuesday, 6/21/2022 at 3:30 pm. 
 

7. Adjournment – Motion made by Commissioner Mark DeYoung, supported by Beth Johnston, to 
adjourn the meeting. All in favor. Approved.  Meeting adjourned at 4:15 pm. 

 
Submitted by Mark Witte 
 



Cornerstone Construction Management
450 W Centre Avenue
Portage, Michigan 49024
P: (269) 321-0200

Project: 21527 ACCMHS
 

 
 

Progress Meeting Minutes: Meeting #9
 

Meeting Date May 26, 2022 Meeting Time 1:00 PM - Eastern Time (US & Canada)

Meeting Location 540 Jenner Drive, Allegan Michigan  

Overview

Notes

Attachments
 
 
Scheduled Attendees

Name Company Phone Number Email Attendance

Nan Lawrence ACCMHS nlawrence@accmhs.org

Erin Trask ACCMHS etrask@accmhs.org

Mark Witte ACCMHS mwitte@accmhs.org

Steve Sedore Allegan County ssedore@allegancounty.org

Cory Harmsen Cornerstone Construction
Management

cory@cornerstonecm.com

Brady Zimmerman Cornerstone Construction
Management

P: (269) 321-0200 brady@cornerstonecm.com

Rich Hamming Schley Nelson Architects P: (269) 375-8360 rhamming@schley-aia.com

Kris Nelson Schley Nelson Architects P: 2693758360 knelson@schley-aia.com

Katherin Farwell USDA katherin.farwell@usda.gov

 
 

Uncategorized Items

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.1  8 Gas load   Open

  Description
Gas service will be normal pressure.  Have not submitted the final gas load to the utility company until the generator is finalized

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.2  8 Folding partition   Open

  Description
Change order for folding partition submitted.

 

 

 
Cornerstone Construction Management Page 1 of 2 Printed On: Jun 13, 2022 11:42 AM EDT
 
 
 

   



No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.3  8 Low voltage scope   Open

  Description
Low voltage scope update

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.4  8 Grand Valley Automation   Open

  Description
Grand Valley Automation.  Updating pricing closer to $120,000 add.

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.5  8 Keying schedule   Open

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.6  9 Electrical changes   Open

  Description
Are the electrical and furniture wall changes submitted by Schley approved by OnPoint?

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.7  9 Wall covering   Open

  Description
Wall covering finish plan?   

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.8  9 Window configurations   Open

  Description
Anderson windows on order based on the configurations presented on the day of approval

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.9  9 Column covers   Open

  Description
Fowler interiors is expecting shops for the column covers

Meeting #9 - Progress Meeting Project: 21527 ACCMHS
 

 
These meeting minutes are believed to be an accurate reflection of those items discussed and the conclusions that were reached during the referenced meeting.  

Please contact Cornerstone Construction Management if there are any discrepancies or questions with the content of these minutes.
 
Cornerstone Construction Management Page 2 of 2 Printed On: Jun 13, 2022 11:42 AM EDT
 
 
 

   



Cornerstone Construction Management
450 W Centre Avenue
Portage, Michigan 49024
P: (269) 321-0200

Project: 21527 ACCMHS
 

 
 

Progress Meeting Agenda: Meeting #10
 

Meeting Date Jun 9, 2022 Meeting Time 1:00 PM - Eastern Time (US & Canada)

Meeting Location 540 Jenner Drive, Allegan Michigan  

Overview

Attachments
 
 
Scheduled Attendees

Name Company Phone Number Email

Nan Lawrence ACCMHS nlawrence@accmhs.org

Erin Trask ACCMHS etrask@accmhs.org

Mark Witte ACCMHS mwitte@accmhs.org

Steve Sedore Allegan County ssedore@allegancounty.org

Cory Harmsen Cornerstone Construction Management cory@cornerstonecm.com

Brady Zimmerman Cornerstone Construction Management P: (269) 321-0200 brady@cornerstonecm.com

Rich Hamming Schley Nelson Architects P: (269) 375-8360 rhamming@schley-aia.com

Kris Nelson Schley Nelson Architects P: 2693758360 knelson@schley-aia.com

Katherin Farwell USDA katherin.farwell@usda.gov

 
 

Uncategorized Items

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.1  8 Low voltage scope   Open

  Description
Low voltage review.  Schedule is a concern

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.2  8 Keying schedule   Open

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.3  9 Wall covering   Open

  Description
Wall covering finish plan?   

 

 

 
Cornerstone Construction Management Page 1 of 2 Printed On: Jun 13, 2022 11:43 AM EDT
 
 
 

   



No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.4  9 Column covers   Open

  Description
Fowler interiors is expecting shops for the column covers

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.5  10 Gas Pressure   Open

  Description
Bulletin #4 specifies 14" min. gas pressure.  I will rework the gas load sheet for 2psig.  

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.6  10 Change order #6   Open

  Description
Review change order #6 items

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.7  10 Power and data updates   Open

  Description
Will the power and data updates become a bulletin?

 

No.  Mtg Origin Title Assignment Due Date Priority Status

1.8  10 Furniture shops   Open

  Description
Schedule for furniture shops

Meeting #10 - Progress Meeting Project: 21527 ACCMHS
 

Cornerstone Construction Management Page 2 of 2 Printed On: Jun 13, 2022 11:43 AM EDT
 
 
 

   



 

Future home of OnPoint 
540 Jenner Drive 
Allegan MI 49010 

June 2022 

    

 

The upper photos were taken on June 11 and the lower photo was taken on June 9. The exterior views show the many 
windows which have been cut into the building to increase natural interior lighting. The interior photo looks south from 
the side of the entrance/lobby area where the front desk space is now defined by steel stud walls.  







































Statement of Net Position
April 30, 2022

September 2021 April 2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,724,816$             6,420,400$            

Accounts receivable 1,193,751               1,258,786              

Prepaid items 456,404                  307,597                 

Total current assets 6,374,972               7,986,783              

Non‐current assets

Capital assets not being depreciated 425,461                  245,461                 

Capital assets being depreciated, net 32,666                    1,778,197              

Total non‐current assets 458,126                  2,023,658              

Total assets 6,833,098               10,010,441            

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,009,003$             6,763,044$            

Accrued vacation and self‐insurance claims 554,561                  554,561                 

Unearned revenue 239,213                  1,448,333              

Current portion of long‐term debt ‐                                256,008                 

Total current liabilities 6,802,777               9,021,946              

Long‐term liabilities

Notes payable ‐                                904,059                 

Total liabilities 6,802,777               9,926,005              

Net position 30,321$                  84,436$                 

ONPOINT

This financial report is for internal use only. It has not been audited, and no assurance is provided.



ONPOINT

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position
October 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022
Percent of Year is 58.33%

Total Original YTD Totals Under/(Over) Percent of 

Budget 4/30/22 Budget Budget ‐ YTD

Operating revenue

Medicaid:

Traditional Capitation 23,526,705$      12,579,280$      10,947,425$      53.47%

Traditional Capitation‐Autism 3,530,898          1,997,684          1,533,214          56.58%

Traditional Settlement ‐                       (556,765)            556,765            

Healthy Michigan Capitation 2,180,136          1,428,990          751,146             65.55%

Healthy Michigan Settlement ‐                       (184,225)            184,225            

Substance use disorder revenue: 

Traditional Capitation 593,010             379,565             213,445             64.01%

Traditional Settlement ‐                       (243,522)            243,522            

Healthy Michigan Capitation 1,000,000          813,003             186,997             81.30%

Healthy Michigan Settlement ‐                       (521,959)            521,959            

State General Fund:

Formula Fundings 1,509,348          880,453             628,895             58.33%

Settlement ‐                       (22,871)              22,871               

SAMHSA Housing  400,000             247,821             152,179             61.96%

Other reimbursements 121,000             67,901                53,099                56.12%

Grants and earned contracts 5,710,319          3,566,447          2,143,872          62.46%

Local funding 346,595             210,326             136,269             60.68%

Total operating revenue 38,918,011$      20,642,128$      18,275,883$      53.04%

Operating expenses

Salaries & Benefits 12,367,854$      5,779,263$        6,588,591$        46.73%

Supplies & Materials 107,452             109,130             (1,678)                101.56%

Contractual Services 25,563,444        14,211,190        11,352,254        55.59%

Communications 183,170             90,282                92,888                49.29%

Travel/Training/Transportation 179,058             89,415                89,643                49.94%

Risk Management 64,012                33,302                30,710                52.02%

Occupancy 304,554             182,860             121,694             60.04%

Other maintenance 5,066                  5,186                  (120)                    102.37%

Equipment 143,401             87,385                56,016                60.94%

Total operating expenses 38,918,011$      20,588,013$      18,329,998$      52.90%

Change in net position ‐                           54,115                (54,115)$           

Beginning net position (unaudited) 30,321                30,321               

Ending net position 30,321$             84,436$            

This financial report is for internal use only. It has not been audited, and no assurance is provided.



ONPOINT

Key Indicators
April 30, 2022

This financial report is for internal use only. It has not been audited, and no assurance is provided.



ONPOINT

Key Indicators
April 30, 2022

This financial report is for internal use only. It has not been audited, and no assurance is provided.



(203) 

Act No. 91 

Public Acts of 2022 

Approved by the Governor 

June 6, 2022 

Filed with the Secretary of State 

June 6, 2022 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  June 6, 2022 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

101ST LEGISLATURE 

REGULAR SESSION OF 2022 

Introduced by Rep. Whiteford 

ENROLLED HOUSE BILL No. 5165 
AN ACT to amend 1974 PA 258, entitled “An act to codify, revise, consolidate, and classify the laws relating 

to mental health; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state and local agencies and officials and certain 

private agencies and individuals; to regulate certain agencies and facilities providing mental health or substance 

use disorder services; to provide for certain charges and fees; to establish civil admission procedures for 

individuals with mental illness, substance use disorder, or developmental disability; to establish guardianship 

procedures for individuals with developmental disability; to establish procedures regarding individuals with 

mental illness, substance use disorder, or developmental disability who are in the criminal justice system; to 

provide for penalties and remedies; and to repeal acts and parts of acts,” by amending section 818 (MCL 330.1818), 

as amended by 1995 PA 290. 

The People of the State of Michigan enact: 

Sec. 818. (1) The department and community mental health services programs shall determine an adult 

responsible party’s ability to pay for adult inpatient psychiatric services of less than 61 days, all nonresidential 

services, and all services to minors, in accordance with the requirements of the federal sliding fee discount 

program under 42 USC 254g and related guidance. Eligibility for the sliding fee discount program must be based 

solely on family size and income in accordance with the most current federal poverty guidelines published 

annually in the Federal Register by the United States Department of Health and Human Services under its 

authority to revise the poverty line under 42 USC 9902. 

(2) The amendatory act that added this sentence is effective immediately. Beginning on the effective date of 

the amendatory act that added this sentence, any administrative rules promulgated under this section before that 

date are unenforceable. The department shall rescind any administrative rule promulgated under this section 

before the effective date of the amendatory act that added this sentence. The department may promulgate new 

administrative rules or establish policy, contract requirements, or guidance to carry out the provisions of this 

section. 



2 

This act is ordered to take immediate effect. 

 

Clerk of the House of Representatives 

 

Secretary of the Senate 

Approved___________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________ 

Governor 



AGENDA 
 

OnPoint 
Program Committee 

Tuesday, June 21, 2022 
4:15 pm  

 
County Services Building, 3283 122nd Avenue, Allegan 

Allegan County Commission Board Room 
 

Also available virtually at the link or phone number below: 

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer or mobile app 

Click here to join the meeting 
Or call in (audio only) 

+1 616-327-2708,,896969400#   United States, Grand Rapids 
Phone Conference ID: 896 969 400# 

 
 
NOTE: At this time, in-person attendance capacity is limited. Social distancing is required.  
 
 

1. Call to Order – Jim Storey, Chair 

2. Public Comment – Agenda Items Only, Subject to 5-Minute Limit Per Person 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Approval of Minutes 

5. Program Presentation: Substance Use Disorder and Prevention Services 

6. Written Reports to Program Committee 

a. Integrated Health – Leanne Kellogg 

b. Clinical Services – Dr. Geniene Gersh 

c. Quality Improvement/Performance Management – Dan Welburn 

d. Customer Service – Cathy Potter (Feb/May/Aug/Nov). 

7. Program Committee Member Comments 

8. Public Comment – Any Topic, Subject to 5-Minute Limit Per Person 

9. Adjournment – Next meeting July 19, 2022 

 
Program Committee: Jim Storey, Chair; Alice Kelsey, Vice Chair;  

Kim Bartnick, Amy Clugston, Emily Schwartz 
 
 

   
 
Program Committee. (Excerpt from Board Bylaws, Art. VII. Section 1c (page 5) approved by OnPoint Board May 2021.) 
The Program Committee shall consist of not less than 4 and not more than 6 Board members and shall include the Authority’s chief program 
officer as an advisor. It shall review data and narrative information provided by Authority staff regarding services delivered by community-
based service providers and hospital providers; review proposed new programs and existing programs and make recommendations relating 
thereto; make recommendations which encourage improvement in quality of services; review information with a view towards policy which 
encourages accountability in areas of programmatic, fiscal, compliance and clinical performance; and review compliance program issues 
and initiatives and make recommendations relating thereto. The Program Committee shall meet monthly, on a regular basis, at a date and 
time determined by the committee chairperson. 



OnPoint 
County Services Building (CSB) ~ 3283 122nd Avenue, Allegan, MI 269-673-3384 

 
Program Committee Minutes 

May 17, 2022 – 4:15 pm 
 
Board Members Present:   Kimberly Bartnick, Alice Kelsey, Emily Schwartz (virtual) and 

Commissioner Jim Storey  
 
Board Members Absent:  Amy Clugston  
 
ACCMHS Staff Present:  Ben Bussfield, Geniene Gersh, Beth Higgins, Brenda Holquist, 

Brenda Polmanteer, Tara Poore, Cathy Potter and Dan Welburn  
 

1. Call to Order  

Commissioner Storey called the meeting to order at 4:16 pm.   

2. Public Comment 

None. 

3. Approval of Agenda 

Moved:  Ms. Bartnick    Supported: Ms. Kelsey 

Motion carried. 

4. Approval of Minutes of April 19, 2021 

Moved:  Ms. Kelsey    Supported:  Ms. Bartnick  

Motion carried.   

6. Program Presentation – Peer Support Specialists and Parent Support Partners 

Mr. Busfield and Ms. Higgins presented and were available for questions.   

5. Program Committee Reports 

a. Integrated Health  

Written report only. 

b. Clinical Services  

Dr. Gersh reviewed her report and was available for questions. 

c. Quality Improvement/Performance Management 

Mr. Welburn reviewed his report and was available for questions. 

d. Customer Service 

Ms. Potter reviewed her report and was available for questions. 

7. Program Committee Member Comments 

None. 

8. Public Comment  

None. 

9. Adjournment  

Meeting adjourned at 5:16 pm.   



OnPoint Integrated Health and SUD Board Report 
June 2022 BOARD REPORT 

Submitted by: Leanne Kellogg, MS, BSN, RN, Director of Integrated Health and Substance Use Services 
269-673-6617 ext. 4868 email: lkellogg@onpointallegan.org 

 

CCBHC (Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic) Grant 

The weekly workgroup continues to focus on project management aspects of the grant, 
highlights of the work done in this group consist of: 

1. Eligibility and access criteria drafts and associated workflows 

a. Various sub-work groups identified areas of need to change, ongoing 
discussions to integrate the best workflow and processes for customer 
experience 

2. Decisions made regarding workflows from initial points of contact, customer 
experience focused language in draft, documentation standardized 

a. Updating various workflow documents and processes to be followed 
consistently 

b. Integrating data-driven quality report tracking mechanisms to ensure 
timeliness of care goals are achieved 

3. Recruitment efforts 

a. Clarifying job descriptions for positions to accommodate various needs in 
areas for peer support and recovery support 

Ongoing project management efforts have also completed the following: 

1. Met all grant required deadlines: 

a. IPP Quarterly Data Submission 

i. Screening, Assessment, Community Collaboration, 
Policy/Procedures Updates as well as applicable Trainings 

ii. Next submission due end of July 

b. Quarterly Narrative Submission 

c. Ongoing Grant Project Officer Meeting 

i. Overview of Project to date, overall change effort dialogue 

ii. Discussion on data:  NOMs, numbers of persons served, evidence-
based practices 

iii. Clarification on questions 

iv. Recruitment updates 

d. Data evaluation efforts continue in the background to ensure appropriate 
“build” of any Streamline enhancements or use of internal data sets as 
well as clinical-based reports to track processes 



Angel Hopkins RN, Clinic Nurse Manager 

Outpatient Psychiatric Medical Clinic 

Our outpatient psychiatric medical clinic team staff continue to be flexible in our remote 
working arrangement to accommodate our consumer needs.  

The medical clinic continues to strive for high quality of care for our consumers and the 
community.  

 Staffing 

o Our three new staff are now orientated.  Jen Dentler our new Nurse Practitioner 
has steadily increased her consumers seen and will continue to increase the 
numbers every couple of weeks while she is still training/learning.  Jen has also 
started her waiver training for medication assisted treatment (MAT).  

 Psych Services 

o Telehealth services are mostly being used by individual choice, but we are 
seeing an increase in in-person appointments. 

 Streamline EMR 

o Specific discussions regarding various ticket issues involving prescriptions 
differences with pharmacies, dosage changes, slowness of Streamline system, 
patient portal, Labatory requisition, ongoing continued evaluation and updates to 
our internal IT department and vendor EMR. Staff continue to meet with 
Streamline to try to resolve some of our tickets.  

 RN Medication Reviews 

o Our nursing staff within their triage and scheduled duties are conducting nurse 
medication reviews, utilizing their licensure to fullest extent as well as extending 
our provider capacity Provider capacity is improved with our new NP having more 
capacity and the CCBHC individuals seeking psychiatric services. 

 Community/Residential Nursing continues to work with finance on billable services and 
increasing caseload. 

Integrated Health Efforts 

 Juvenile Home visits and assessments are being conducted as needed with 
proper PPE and guidance from Dr. Tooker and the infection control nurse 
Lindsey Lewis, RN. 

 COVID testing continues  

 

  Submitted by: Rebecca DeHart-Elkins, Occupational Therapist 

 Occupational Therapy 

o Our OT and COTA continue to provide in-home services for the current 
OT caseload and are in the process of evaluating new referrals. 
Consumers continue to be seen on a bi-weekly basis so long as they do 
not have symptoms of COVID-19 or recent exposure.  

















Quality Improvement/Compliance/Information Technology Board Report 
May 2022 

Submitted by: Dan Welburn, Tyler Ward, Jennifer Taylor, Michell Truax, and Kimberly Bectel 

Quality Improvement  

 LRE site review work  

Utilization Management  

 Submitted one new applications for the Habilitative Supports Waiver.    

 Preparing the UM and HSW sections for the LRE audit.  

 Completed nearly --- authorizations.  This does not include concurrent reviews 
completed during the month of June.  

 Corporate Compliance  

 2 cases  

 Information Technology  

 Dealt with server issues  

 Temporary/Backup internet set up in new building   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
MINUTES 

 
ONPOINT 

Tuesday, May 17, 2022 at 5:30 P.M. 
COUNTY SERVICES BUILDING, 3283 122ND AVENUE, ALLEGAN 

Allegan County Commission Board Room 
 

Present:  Kim Bartnick, Glen Brookhouse, Commissioner Mark DeYoung, Commissioner Gale 
Dugan, Beth Johnston, Alice Kelsey, Emily Schwarz (5:35), Commissioner Jim 
Storey, Karen Stratton and Pastor Craig Van Beek  

Absent:  Amy Clugston and John Weerstra 

Staff:  Geniene Gersh, Brenda Holquist, Nan Lawrence, Kelsey Newsome, , Brenda 
Polmanteer, Cathy Potter, Erinn Trask, Dan Welburn and Mark Witte 

Visitors:   Don Avery (LRE)  
 
1. Call to Order  

Commissioner Dugan called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  Roll call was taken and a 
quorum was reached. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

Recited. 

3. Provision for Public Comment   

None. 

4. Approval of Agenda  

Moved:  Commissioner Storey    Supported:  Ms. Bartnick 

Motion carried by roll call. 

5. Consent Agenda – All items listed are routine and to be enacted by one motion. 

a. Recommended Motion: Approval of prior minutes for the following: 

i. Building Committee Meeting (04.19.2022) 
ii. Finance Committee Meeting (04.19.2022)  
i. Board Meeting (04.19.2022)  
ii. Program Committee Meeting (04.19.2022)  

 
Moved:  Mr. Brookhouse     Supported:  Pastor Van Beek 

Motion carried by roll call. 

6. Building Committee  

Commissioner Dugan gave a report on the most recent meeting and was available for 
questions.   

7. Program Committee  

Commissioner Storey briefly reviewed the activities of the Program Committee, highlighting 
reports of interest and was available for questions. 

8. Finance Committee Report – Ms. Johnston 



a. The finance committee recommends that the OnPoint board approve the April 2022 
Disbursements totaling $3,397,752.92. 

Moved:  Ms. Johnston    Supported:  Ms. Kelsey 

Motion carried by roll call. 

Ms. Trask gave an overview of the April financials and was available for questions. 

9. Recipient Rights Advisory Committee (Feb/Apr/Jun/Aug/Oct/Dec)  

No report this month. 

10. Chairperson’s/Executive Committee Report  

Commissioner Dugan recapped the Executive Committee Meeting and was available for 
questions.   

Resolution:  The OnPoint Board of Directors authorizes its Executive Director to 
sign/complete and all documents required to execute the resolutions set forth. 

Moved:  Commissioner Storey    Supported:  Ms. Bartnick 

Motion carried by roll call. 

Commissioner Dugan presented a plaque for Bill Buell recognizing his service on the board.  
Commissioner Dugan will deliver it to him. 

11. LRE Update 

Don Avery, Provider Network Manager, gave an update on the LRE and was available for 
questions.    

12. OnPoint Executive Director’s Report  

Mr. Witte reviewed his report and was available for questions.  

Motion:  Mr. Witte and Commissioner DeYoung to be appointed as voting delegates at the 
CMHA Summer Conference. 

Moved:  Ms. Kelsey    Supported:  Ms. Johnston 

Motion carried by roll call. 

13. Provision for Public Comment  

None.  

14. Board Member Comments 

Commissioner Dugan thanks Ms. Stratton for stepping up and joining the board. 

Commissioner DeYoung also thanks Ms. Stratton and welcomes her.  He also thanks the 
board for approving the Bylaws and Operating Agreement for the LRE. 

Commissioner Dugan thanks the staff for their continued service. 

  



16. Motion to Adjourn:  

Moved:  Ms. Kelsey     Supported:  Ms. Stratton 

Motion carried by roll call. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 6:26 pm. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Brenda Holquist Gale Dugan 
Executive Assistant Board Chair 



OnPoint 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 13, 2022 – 2:30 pm 
 

Board Members {x] Commissioner Gale Dugan, ACCMHS Board Chairperson 
[x] Alice Kelsey, ACCMHS Board Vice-Chairperson 
[e] Elizabeth Johnston, ACCMHS Board Treasurer  
[x] Commissioner Jim Storey, ACCMHS Board Secretary 

ACCMHS Staff [x] Mark Witte, Executive Director 
 

1. Call to Order – Chair Gale Dugan – 2:45p 

2. Members Present/Excused – Chair Dugan, Members Kelsey and Storey; Johnston 
excused; E.D. Witte. 

3. Review of Agenda – Chair motion to approve by Kelsey; second Storey; passed. 

4. Review/Approval of Minutes of Prior Meeting – Chair; Moved by Kelsey to approve; 
second by Storey; Passed. 

5. Updates on Prior Meeting Topic – Witte 

a. Building Update (Witte) – Status update: pictures of progress were shown: steel 
studs being placed to create rooms; an electrical distribution plan is being drawn by 
the architect Project is on schedule. Internal team is Witte, Nan, Dan, CFO; AC team: 
Steve Sedore, Carl Chapman, and Randy VanAtter. 

b. Branding (Witte) – Status update – Everything except one item has been executed in 
the planned transition from ACCMHSB to OnPoint. Email receipts to correspondents 
still carry ACCMSB title; working to make this last conversion to OnPoint. 

c. Executive Director Contract (Dugan) – Status update: Contract is being readied by 
agency’s legal counsel.  

d. Board Meeting Packet/Meeting Prep (Dugan) – Chair Dugan asked if there are any 
changes/observations on board packets. Kelsey raised the financial reporting as 
improved and suggested that improved explanation is needed to educate board 
members. Discussion ensued. Witte advised the state is communicating when the 
federal government declares an end of the Covid pandemic how to prepare for the 
end of emergency funding. 

6. Discussion Items Requested by Members – Chair 

a. Storey requested that change orders be addressed at future exec-com meetings.  

7. Executive Director Items – Witte 

a. Property Update (Status update) Witte met with the owners of the house on the 
adjacent property to the new building.  The owners of the property will not sell at this 
time for non-economic reasons. 

b. LRE Board Candidates  (Witte) – Recruitment update: Several potential names were 
raised.  

c. Board Member Orientation (Witte) – Request for direction on approach: Karen Sutton 
is a new board member and question was put as to whether it should be a one-off 
orientation or should it be open to any board member who would like to do so. 

d. Board Member Photos (Witte) – ExCom unanimously recommended. 



e. CMHA Involvement (Witte) – Discussion about need; implications for board 
members. There is a need for greater involvement of On Point board members in the 
affairs of the Community Mental Health Association.  

f. Upcoming Time Away (Witte) – Starting Fri 5/20/22; Returning Tue 5/31/22 

8. Next Meeting Date/Time – Friday, June 17, 2022 at 2:30 pm. 

9. Adjournment – Chair: Kelsey moved to adjourn; second by Storey; Passed. 3:52 pm. 



Executive Director Board Report – June 2022 
Submitted by Mark A. Witte, MSW, LMSW, Executive Director 

Cell/Text: 269-615-4893 – mwitte@onpointallegan.org 
 

1. Senate Bills 597/598 – The most recent information we have is that these bills are now 
expected to be put on the floor of the Senate by Senator Shirkey next week (the week of 
6/13/2022). We have not heard that there are sufficient “yes” votes to assure passage, 
however. The common wisdom is that Shirkey, as Senate Majority Leader, would not put 
measures (especially one he sponsored) to a vote if he was not confident of passage. This 
has resulted in urgent requests from CMHA to once again express our opposition to these 
bills. Even if they were to pass, they are expected to face an incredibly uphill battle in the 
House because of Rep. Whiteford’s alternative bills.  

2. LRE – Four of the five CMHs in our region have approved the LRE’s revised bylaws and 
operating agreement. Network180’s board requested additional legal review because of 
questions that arose during their review, part of which included a community forum with 
provider organizations. I will defer a more focused update for Commissioner DeYoung to 
give during our June meeting. I will say, however, that I am confident we will see a 
conclusion to this process very soon.  

3. Building Update – Our most recent building progress meeting occurred yesterday (6/9/22) 
and all is on course. There are, naturally, several decisions that are becoming pressing – 
involving low voltage wiring, etc. These are being handled with significant partnership from 
the county and our architect. The building itself is noticeably different in appearance thanks 
to large holes that have been cut in the concrete block exterior to prepare for windows. I’ll try 
to have some fresh pictures for you to pass around at the June building committee and 
board meetings. 

4. CMHAM Summer Conference – Commissioner DeYoung and I appreciated the opportunity 
to participate in the summer conference for the Community Mental Health Association of 
Michigan. The venue is as attractive as always, and the attendance was strong. We 
attended the pre-conference session on integrating physical and behavioral health, which 
was useful in helping to keep this issue in the forefront of our minds and for preparation of 
discussions to make it more of a reality with local healthcare system partners.  During the 
breakout with our regional meeting, my appointment to the CMHA Legislative & Policy 
Committee was renewed and I was also named to a three-year term as a Western Region 
representative to the Executive Board, replacing Julia Rupp of HealthWest. This is a 
personal expression of commitment for the point I made last month that OnPoint should 
begin to demonstrate greater involvement in the association, especially with board 
members. The summer conference of 2023 will be the next opportunity for this kind of 
nomination; other opportunities for involvement with ad hoc committees may emerge and I 
will prompt your consideration of those as they occur. I also made a personal contribution to 
the CMH PAC while there. I also encourage you to do that as well as whatever level you 
may determine is right for you. Any amount is welcome.  

5. CNHA/CHIP – The passage of US Affordable Care Act (ACA) resulted in IRS code changes 
that now require non-profit hospitals to "conduct a community health needs assessment 
(CHNA) every three years and to adopt an implementation strategy to meet the community 
health needs identified through the CHNA.” (https://tinyurl.com/5dhrthx4). This was required, 
in part, because hospitals were anticipated to see large reductions in uncompensated care 
due to increases in insurance coverage under the ACA. Ascension Borgess Allegan Hospital 
has completed their 2022 CHNA, and we had the opportunity to review a draft of it at the 



Multi-Agency Collaborating Council (MACC) in early May. We anticipate that the report will 
identify mental health and substance use disorders as the highest priority needs in Allegan 
County. As you know, these issues are among our agency’s highest responsibilities, 
especially considering the advent of our CCBHC grant. So, we pressed the hospital to 
include us at their earliest possible opportunity to assist with the development of their 
implementation plan. The aim is to make every effort to assure alignment with the hospital’s 
efforts with OnPoint capacities and ongoing strategies to address these needs. A 
preliminary meeting occurred on 6/7/2022 to frame the development process that will result 
in the official Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) later this fall. I will be aiming to 
further our relationship with this important community institution and to increase our roles as 
prospective partners in future healthcare/behavioral health integration initiatives. 

6. COVID-19 Update – Lindsey Lewis, RN, our infection control nurse provided an update to 
staff on 6/1/22 noting an uptick in COVID-19 numbers in the past few weeks. She also noted 
that four (4) of our staff tested positive within the 24 hours preceding her update. Their 
symptoms were mild, thankfully, but it prompted a reminder of the importance of best 
practices for infection control. Allegan County’s infection rate as of 6/10/2022 is .99 (61st out 
of 83 counties). Even though our current hospitalization rate is the best in the state (1st of 
83), our lower vaccination rates (55th of 83) makes me think we’ll see an increase in cases 
pretty soon. With these risks in front of us, masks have been a big topic of discussion. We 
are encouraging increased use of surgical/N95 masks but are only mandating their use 
when staff are providing direct services to clients or in meetings where social distancing is 
not possible. If a board member or member of the community experiences symptoms, 
please get tested as soon as possible and stay home. We also always recommend that you 
stay current with vaccinations and the use of good hand hygiene practices.  

7. MATCP – I spent a few days in Lansing last week with the executive committee of the 
Michigan Association of Treatment Court Professionals. In addition to the normal business, 
we spent time assisting the association with the selection of an advocacy/lobbying firm to 
support their work with the legislature. Because the association is largely made up of judges 
and court staff from more than 200 specialty treatment courts around Michigan, their work 
often involves legislative work and constant vigilance on matters that could weaken their 
powerful impact on so many people. Several of the founding judges who shaped specialty 
courts are aging or retired, making it necessary to secure professional advocacy services 
that used to be provided through the personal influence of those heroes of the past. 
Allegan’s mental health and veterans drug court benefit from MATCPs work and I am 
grateful to support the vital role of treatment services fused to the legal process. 

 

Mark Witte, Executive Director  

Friday, June 10, 2022 

 

 

 

 




